
NOTICE OF MEETING  
Washington County Fair Complex Board of Directors  

Wednesday, April 1, 2009, at 4:30 p.m.  
NEW LOCATION: CLOVERLEAF BUILDING- 

Washington County Fair Complex 

873 NE 34
th 

Avenue, Hillsboro, OR 97124  
 

Matt Pihl, President 
Don McCoun, Vice-President                Herbert Hirst, Board Member 
Dan Logan, Treasurer, Booster Liaison                           Renee Cannon, Board Member 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
The Washington County Fair Complex Board is comprised of seven members appointed 
by the Board of County Commissioners. Each Fair Complex Board member is appointed 
for a three-year term.  
 
The Fair Complex Board has the exclusive management of the grounds, and all other 
property owned, leased, used or controlled by the County and devoted to the use of the 
Fair Complex, and is entrusted and charged with the entire business management, and 
financial and other affairs of the Fair Complex.  
 
The Fair Complex, a division of the County, produces the annual County Fair and 
manages year-round facilities rented for consumer shows, public expositions and special 
gathering. The Fair Complex Board meets monthly or as necessary, develops the Fair 
Complex's annual operating budget, and provides overall policy direction for the 
management of Fair Complex activities and facilities. The Fair Complex's day-to-day 
activities are the responsibility of the Complex Executive Director, who serves at the 
pleasure of the Fair Board.  
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), this material, in alternate 
formats, or special accommodations for the meeting, will be made available by calling 
(503) 648-1416 at least 48 hours prior to this meeting  
 
All public meetings are recorded.  
________________________________________________________________________ 
Current Meeting Schedule  

Unless otherwise noted, Fair Complex Board Meetings are held the first Wednesday of 
every month at 4:30 p.m. in the Cloverleaf Building at the Washington County Fair 
Complex, 873 N.E. 34th Avenue, Hillsboro, Oregon 97124.  

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 34



Regular Business Meetings  

Regular business meetings are the time during which the Fair Complex Board will 
consider the items published in their Board Agenda at the times noted above.  

Generally, Board Meetings are scheduled to last no longer than two hours. At the 
discretion of the Board Chair, agenda items may be deferred to a later date if more 
discussion or consideration is required.  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Quorum  

To take formal action on any agenda item, a majority of Board members must be present. 
Once a quorum is established, at least a majority of these members present must vote in 
the affirmative to move an action or motion.  

The Board can still conduct business and discuss agenda items without a quorum present. 
However, no formal action can take place until a quorum of the Board is in attendance.  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Executive Sessions  

There are times when the Fair Complex Board must discuss confidential matters such as 
lawsuits, real estate transactions (or other sales transactions) and labor relations matters. 
When the Board calls an executive session (posted on the agenda), it is done under the 
guidelines allowed for by Oregon State law. Each type of executive session generally fits 
under one of three types of State Laws that allow such closed sessions. These statutes are 
indicated on the agenda. Although the press is allowed to remain in the room, they are not 
allowed to report on executive session issues. The Board recognizes the sensitivity of 
conducting closed sessions and only conducts them when confidentiality is required (and 
allowed by law) to protect the interests of the Fair Complex, Washington County and its 
residents.  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Once the Regular Business Meeting Begins  

The Fair Complex Board's formal meetings typically include the following elements:  

1. Call to Order: At the start of the Board meeting, the Chair (or Vice Chair) of 
the Board will call the meeting to order. All matters noticed and listed on the 
agenda, in any category, may be considered for action in any order at the 
discretion of the Board Chair. Items not so noticed may be discussed at the 
discretion of the Board Chair, but cannot be considered for action.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 34



2. Oral Communications for Agenda and Non-Agenda Items (Fifteen Minute 
Limit): This is the time when members of the audience may step forward to 
address the Board on agenda and non-agenda items. This opportunity is time-
limited to two (2) minutes per individual at the first Oral Communications period 
which has a total maximum time of 15 minutes. The second Oral 
Communications period at the end of the meeting is time-limited to 5 minutes per 
individual with a total maximum time of 30 minutes for the session.  Individuals 
providing written testimony are requested to provide 15 copies.  

 

3. General Consent, also known as Unanimous Consent, is a situation when the 
presiding officer asks if there are objections to a pending motion, rather than 
taking a formal vote. General Consent eliminates the need for formal votes on 
matters such as routine procedural questions in which the existence of a consensus 
is likely. The chair may state, for instance: "If there is no objection, the motion 
will be adopted. [pause] Since there is no objection, the motion is adopted" On the 
most routine matters the chair may shorten this statement to four words: "Without 
objection, so ordered" or even to two words: "Without objection." If no member 
objects then the motion is adopted, but if any member does declare his opposition 
then the motion is not adopted and cannot be agreed to without a vote. If any 
member objects, the chair must state the question on the motion, allow any 
desired debate and put the question in the regular manner. General Consent does 
not necessarily imply that every member is in favor of the proposed action; it may 
only mean that the opposition, feeling that it is useless to oppose or discuss the 
matter, simply acquiesces. Similarly, when a member objects they may not 
necessarily oppose the motion itself, but may believe that it is wise to take a 
formal vote under the circumstances. 

 

4.  Consent Agenda: The items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine 
and will be adopted in one motion unless a Board member requests, before the 
vote on the motion, to have the item considered separately. If any item is removed 
from the Consent Agenda, the Chair will indicate when it will be discussed in the 
regular agenda. 

 

5. Regular Agenda Items: Unless otherwise noted, regular agenda items will 
follow in the order listed on the agenda.  

 

6. Adjournment: At the conclusion of the items on the Board’s agenda, the 
Board Chair will formally conclude the Board’s regular business. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 34



 
Meeting Protocol  

The Fair Complex Board welcomes public attendance and participation at its meetings. 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda or non-agenda item at a regular business meeting 
should feel free to do so. In doing so, the Board asks that the following guidelines be 
observed:  

1. Please follow sign-in procedures located on the table by the entrance to the 
meeting room.  

2. When your name is announced, please be seated at the table in front and state 
your full name, home address and organization represented, if any, for the record.  

3. Groups or organizations wishing to make a presentation are asked to designate 
one spokesperson in the interest of time and to avoid repetition.  

4. When more than one citizen is heard on any matter, please avoid repetition in 
your comments. Careful attention to the previous speaker’s remarks will be 
helpful in this regard.  

5. Individuals providing written testimony are requested to provide 15 copies.  

 

Page 4 of 34



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), this material, in alternate formats, or special 
accommodations for the meeting, will be made available by calling (503) 648-1416 at least 48 hours prior to this 
meeting. 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Washington County Fair Complex Board of Directors 
Wednesday, April 1, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. 

NEW LOCATION: CLOVERLEAF BUILDING, Washington County Fair Complex 
873 NE 34th Avenue, Hillsboro, OR 97124 

 
Matt Pihl, President  

Don McCoun, Vice-President   Herbert Hirst, Board Member 
Dan Logan, Treasurer, Booster Liaison              Renee Cannon, Board Member 

____________________________________________________________________________________                           
      
A.  Call to Order 
 
B.  Approval of Agenda—APPROVE BY GENERAL CONSENT 
 
C. Consideration of Ex-Officio Position (Liaison between the Fair Board and the Washington County  
     Board of Commissioners.) ACTION ITEM: MOTION AND APPROVAL REQUIRED 
 
D.  Oral Communications for Agenda and Non-Agenda Items (Fifteen Minute Limit)  
  

This is the time when members of the audience may step forward to address the Board on 
agenda and non-agenda items. This opportunity is time-limited to two (2) minutes per 
individual. The maximum time for Oral Communications is 15 minutes. Individuals providing 
written testimony are requested to provide 15 copies. 

 
E.  Approval of Minutes—APPROVE BY GENERAL CONSENT  
 
F.  Special Reports  

1. Booster/Coalition Liaison – Dan Logan, Board Member 
2. Treasurer’s Report – Dan Logan, Board Member   
     A. Financial Statements (PDF) 

•  Monthly Financial Reports & Balance Sheets – February 2009 (PDF)-ACTION 
ITEM: MOTION AND APPROVAL REQUIRED 

•  Other, if any 
3. 4-H Report-Pat Willis, OSU/4-H Youth Development Faculty 
4. Operations Report-Staff (PDF) 
5. Other, if any 
 

 
G.  Old Business 

1. Redevelopment Update 
2. Executive Director Search Flyer from Human Resources (PDF) 
3. Other, if any 

 
H.  New Business 
                1.   Other, if any 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 34



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), this material, in alternate formats, or special 
accommodations for the meeting, will be made available by calling (503) 648-1416 at least 48 hours prior to this 
meeting. 

I. Announcements 
1. Calendar of Events (PDF) 
2. Facility Schedule for April, 2009 
3. Other, if any 

 
J. Correspondence 

1. Letters and Cards, if any (PDF) 
2. Other, if any 

 
K.  Board Oral Communications 
 
L.  Other Matters of Information 

1. Boosters Meeting Minutes – March, 2009 (PDF) 
2. Boosters Historical Piece (PDF) 
3. Newspaper Articles (PDF) 
4. Other, if any 

 
M. Oral Communications for Agenda and Non-Agenda Items (Thirty Minute Time Limit)  
  

This is the time when members of the audience may step forward to address the Board on 
agenda and non-agenda items. This opportunity is time-limited to five (5) minutes per 
individual. The maximum time for Oral Communications is 30 minutes. Individuals providing 
written testimony are requested to provide 15 copies. 

 
 
 
N. Executive Session 

In accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (h), to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and 
duties of the Board with regard to litigation or litigation likely to be filed; in accordance with 
ORS 192.660 (2) (e), to deliberate with persons designated by the Board to negotiate real 
property transactions;  and/or in accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (a), (b), (h), or (i), to discuss, 
review and evaluate employee-related matters. Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (3), it is Board’s 
request that the items discussed not be disclosed by media representatives or others.  

 

O.  Adjourn 

Page 6 of 34



Minutes 
Washington County Fair Complex Board 

Wednesday, March 4, 2009 
 
Convened: 4:32 p.m. 
 
FAIR COMPLEX BOARD: 
President Matt Pihl 
Vice President Don McCoun 
Treasurer Dan Logan 
Board Member Renee Cannon 
Board Member Herb Hirst 
 
STAFF: 
Leah Perkins-Hagele, Fair Manager 
Lisa DuPre’, Marketing/Events Manager 
 

A. Call to Order - President Pilh called the meeting to order and asked the board 
and guests to silence their cell phones. President Pihl noted that all members were 
present except for Board Member Cannon. 

 
B. Approval of Agenda - President Pihl asked Board Members for approval of the 

agenda. Hearing no objection, the agenda was approved. 
 
C. Oral Communications 

1. Aldie Howard – Howard states that he is the next Executive Director. His 
plan is simple; he knows what the issues are. Howard says he would start 
programs with city counsels and chambers of commerce and in 3-5 years 
down the road go back to the voters. Will accept pay of $4000 per month 
with benefits and the board can fire him at the end of any month. Note – 
Board Member Cannon joined the meeting in progress at 4:35 p.m. 

 
D. Approval of the Minutes - President Pihl asked Board Members for approval of 

the minutes. Hearing no objection, the minutes were approved. 
 

E. Special Reports 
1. Executive Director Search Committee – President Pihl dissolved this 

committee. Pihl explained that the search would continue with the board 
as a whole. Pihl requested that staff put together a timeline for the search. 

2. Booster Liaison – Board Member Logan had nothing at this time. 
3. Treasurer’s Report – Board Member Logan had nothing to add. 
 
Motion by Board Member Logan to approve the financial statement and 
balance sheet. Second by Board Member Hirst. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Board Member Cannon requested notification on upcoming budget hearings. 

Page 7 of 34



4. Competitive Exhibits Committee - President Pihl dissolved this 
committee. Pihl explained that this was more appropriate as a staff 
activity. Fair Manager Perkins-Hagele gave the board a brief recap of the 
first livestock meeting. 

5. 4-H Report – 4-H Agent Pat Willis reported that he has met with Fair 
Manager Perkins-Hagele to plan for a good fair for the kids. Maryann 
Andrews has also volunteered to help since he is new. Willis reported that 
there has been a 5% decrease in the state budget across the board and more 
decreases are expected. 

6. Operations Report – Fair Manager Perkins-Hagele had nothing to add. 
7. Other, if any – None. 
 

F. Old Business 
1. Redevelopment Update – Presentation of Facility Analysis Report by Sid 

Scott of Scott Edwards Architecture. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding electrical and fire safety. 
 
Motion by Board Member Hirst to place a motion on the floor to 
facilitate discussion. 
 
Board Member Hirst stated that he feels obligated as a director as well as the 
urgency of liability that we face. Hirst stated that he has gone through the 
report very studiously. Can’t tear everything down and start over. The 
following motion is to lessen the liability, make good faith effort and not see 
anyone get hurt which gives us time to come up with a plan. 
 
Motion by Board Member Hirst to remove the following structures. 1. 
Meeting Room. 2. Goat and Sheep Barns. 3. Chuck Wagon. 4. Swine 
Barn. 5. Booster Food Booth. 6. Arena Announcer Stand and supply 
better restroom facilities. Second by Board Member McCoun. Discussion 
ensued: 
 
Hirst states that these structures will cost little to dispose of. Staff can provide 
tents for sheet and goats a trailer for the meeting room and the swine can use 
more tents as well. 
 
Jeff Fitch – Structural Engineer – Reminded that the roof structure behind the 
milking parlor needs to be removed immediately. 
 
Board Member McCoun voiced his concerns regarding the lack of electrical 
disconnects in the barns. McCoun recognized all the hard work of volunteers 
that went into the barns, but their overall life has been reached. The Fire 
Department won’t get here before there is loss of life. The open light fixtures 
are dangerous. Shouldn’t allow our youngsters to be put in jeopardy. The Fair 

Page 8 of 34



Board has a responsibility to do something about these barns. Fortunate to 
have this property and the Fair Board are the stewards. 
 
Board Member Logan stated that it’s not realistic to proceed without a plan. 
Can’t flatten the facility, would loose rentals. 
 
Board Member Cannon felt that taking down some of the unsafe structures 
would allow focus on what can be done. This doesn’t violate the master plan. 
 
Sid Scott suggested a meeting with the City. Scott also recommended a list of 
priorities and to come up with a reasonable plan. Scott did some sketches of 
some options for replacement buildings. 
 
Board Member Logan stated that a plan is needed instead of tearing down 
structures. 
 
Board Member Hirst explained that the purpose of the motion was to take care 
of a few immediate concerns, which would allow time to come up with a plan. 
Hirst said he feels he is doing the best he can with the information provided. 
It’s necessary to get started. 
 
President Pihl said that the only building that is identified in the report as 
severe life safety is the Main Exhibit Hall. Pihl noted that he might be missing 
something with this motion. A plan before action would be prudent. Need to 
understand the ramification. More time and more thought are necessary. 
 
Board Member Cannon pointed out that life safety hazards are noted in the 
report for all the buildings. Pihl said that life safety hazards and severe life 
safety is different. Cannon said he is talking semantics. 
 
Board Member Hirst noted that the reason the Main Exhibit Hall and the barns 
were not in the motion is because we only have $300k to spend. The 
structures in the motion are small cheap options that can be done to improve 
life safety now. 
 
Board Member McCoun stated that the results of these structures being 
removed is insignificant and can be temporarily taken care of in the interim. 
Staff can take care of this tomorrow. McCoun called for the question. 
 
Motion by Board Member Hirst to remove the following structures. 1. 
Meeting Room. 2. Goat and Sheep Barns. 3. Chuck Wagon. 4. Swine 
Barn. 5. Booster Food Booth. 6. Arena Announcer Stand. Second by 
Board Member McCoun. Motion carried 3-2 with Board Members Logan 
and Pihl as opposed. 
 

Page 9 of 34



Motion by Board Member Hirst to take down the three structure 
additions as identified. Second by Board Member McCoun. Motion 
carried 5-0. 
 
Board Member Cannon asked structural engineer Jeff Fitch if taking down 
these additions will it add safety to the structures. Fitch reported that it would 
relieve stress on the buildings. Sid Scott noted that it would also help with 
water infiltration. Cannon asked staff for a written summary of the plans for 
the fair for these removed structures. 
 
Board Member Hirst thanked Sid Scott and his group. The report is a real eye 
opener. 
 
Board Member Logan asked that a plan be developed to the expenditure of the 
$300k for the biggest return on investment. Logan stated that he would like to 
see buildings that generate revenue updated as well as the electrical in the 
barns.  
 
Board Member Cannon stated that she would like a special meeting with City 
official’s set-up soon. 
 
2. Other, if any – None. 
 

G. New Business 
1. Other, if any – None. 
 

H. Announcements – None other than what is in the packet. 
 
I. Correspondence – None other than what is in the packet. 

 
J. Board Oral Communications – Board Member Hirst stated that he might not be 

available for the April meeting. 
 

K. Other Matters of Information – None other than what is in the packet. 
 

L. Oral Communications – President Pihl opened the second oral communications. 
Hearing none, oral communications was closed. 

 
M. Executive Session – None. 

 
N. Adjourn – With no further business before the Board, and hearing no objection, 

President Pihl asked to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 34



________________________________        _________________________________ 
Leah Perkins-Hagele    Matt Pihl 
Recording Secretary    Board President 

 
 
 

 
       

Page 11 of 34



Monthly Financial Report
Washington County

  Washington County Period: FEB-09 Currency: USD

Submitted: 18-MAR-09 17:02:39
Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981000 (Fair Complex) Remaining %
Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
Beginning Fund Balance (945,162.00) (830,029.00)
Taxes
41025 Transient lodgings tax             (33,241.87) (407,095.92) (680,000.00) (272,904.08) 59.90
TOTAL                                    (33,241.87) (407,095.92) (680,000.00) (272,904.08) 59.90
Intergovernmental revenue
43156 Dept Agriculture Lottery Funds   0.00 (49,404.72) (46,000.00) 3,404.72 107.40
TOTAL                                    0.00 (49,404.72) (46,000.00) 3,404.72 107.40
Charges for sevices
44511 Camping Fees                       0.00 (4,050.00) (4,000.00) 50.00 101.30
44512 Truck Pull Revenue                 0.00 (22,005.00) (17,500.00) 4,505.00 125.70
44513 Demo Derby Revenue                 0.00 (26,481.00) (38,700.00) (12,219.00) 68.40
44514 Commercial Booth Rentals           0.00 (94,850.00) (86,500.00) 8,350.00 109.70
44515 Parking Fees                       (1,980.00) (105,680.21) (109,000.00) (3,319.79) 97.00
44516 Admission Fees                     0.00 (133,339.47) (130,000.00) 3,339.47 102.60
44517 Sponsorship Fees                   0.00 (70,600.00) (87,500.00) (16,900.00) 80.70
44518 Carnival Fees                      0.00 (102,412.27) (90,000.00) 12,412.27 113.80
44522 Entry Fees                         0.00 (3,710.00) (4,000.00) (290.00) 92.80
44526 Monster Truck Revenue              0.00 (22,885.00) (27,000.00) (4,115.00) 84.80
44527 Rodeo Revenue                      0.00 (16,469.00) (27,000.00) (10,531.00) 61.00
TOTAL                                    (1,980.00) (602,481.95) (621,200.00) (18,718.05) 97.00
Miscellaneous revenues
48105 Invest interest income-general     (1,021.43) (12,335.21) (22,500.00) (10,164.79) 54.80
48195 Reimbursement of expenses (oper (77.00) (37,006.63) 0.00 37,006.63 n/m
48200 Rental income                      (17,717.73) (74,147.48) (200,000.00) (125,852.52) 37.10
48205 Concessions                        (37.00) (108,592.00) (92,000.00) 16,592.00 118.00
48225 Other miscellaneous revenue-oper (434.75) (14,909.60) (25,750.00) (10,840.40) 57.90
Total (19,287.91) (246,990.92) (340,250.00) (93,259.08) 72.60

Total Revenues (54,509.78) (1,305,973.51) (1,687,450.00) (381,476.49) 77.40
Total Resources (2,251,135.51) (2,517,479.00) (266,343.49)

Personal Services
51105 Wages and salaries                 25,222.40 217,350.50 375,895.00 158,544.50 57.80
51110 Temporary salaries                 2,744.00 28,410.18 9,776.00 (18,634.18) 290.60
51115 Overtime and other pay             0.00 8,173.22 0.00 (8,173.22) n/m
51125 FICA                               2,118.76 18,654.58 29,506.00 10,851.42 63.20
51135 Employer paid work day tax         14.56 123.83 221.00 97.17 56.00
51140 Pers contribution                  4,018.02 32,646.33 60,141.00 27,494.67 54.30
51150 Health insurance                   4,918.20 41,558.79 74,592.00 33,033.21 55.70
51155 Life and long term disability insur 64.36 562.38 1,167.00 604.62 48.20
51160 Unemployment insurance             118.44 1,025.35 1,643.00 617.65 62.40
51165 Tri-Met tax                        174.80 1,529.83 2,569.00 1,039.17 59.50
51199 Misc Personal Services             0.00 0.00 14,883.00 14,883.00 0.00
TOTAL                                    39,393.54 350,034.99 570,393.00 220,358.01 61.40

Page 1 Page 12 of 34



Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981000 (Fair Complex) Remaining %
Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
Materials and Supplies
51205 Supplies-office, general           2,227.23 3,358.10 4,250.00 891.90 79.00
51210 Supplies- general                  1,073.43 40,479.66 46,000.00 5,520.34 88.00
51270 Postage and freight                0.00 142.50 0.00 (142.50) n/m
51285 Services -professional services    1,386.30 218,171.09 170,250.00 (47,921.09) 128.10
51295 Advertising  and  public notice    524.99 127,849.13 138,750.00 10,900.87 92.10
51300 Printing and duplicating           0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
51305 Communications-services            434.09 2,652.27 800.00 (1,852.27) 331.50
51310 Utilities                          5,677.76 53,174.30 77,500.00 24,325.70 68.60
51320 Repair & maint services-general   5,584.75 26,923.27 59,200.00 32,276.73 45.50
51340 Lease and rentals - space          3,201.75 28,815.75 0.00 (28,815.75) n/m
51345 Lease and rentals - equipment      188.45 25,611.81 24,000.00 (1,611.81) 106.70
51350 Dues and membership                190.00 1,003.25 2,500.00 1,496.75 40.10
51355 Training and education             905.00 1,434.00 4,000.00 2,566.00 35.90
51360 Travel expense                     2,084.34 4,747.89 4,000.00 (747.89) 118.70
51365 Private mileage                    143.39 713.72 700.00 (13.72) 102.00
51420 Insurance                          0.00 34,408.46 30,000.00 (4,408.46) 114.70
51465 Postage and freight- Internal      0.00 113.43 800.00 686.57 14.20
51475 Printing- Internal                 0.00 898.54 1,000.00 101.46 89.90
51495 Telephone monthly- internal        0.00 3,952.43 7,000.00 3,047.57 56.50
51550 Other materials and services       0.00 1,432.28 4,500.00 3,067.72 31.80
TOTAL                                    23,621.48 575,881.88 575,750.00 (131.88) 100.00
Other Expenditures
52005 Bank Service Charge                22.62 4,354.82 3,500.00 (854.82) 124.40
52045 Taxes, assessments, and  liens     0.00 554.12 0.00 (554.12) n/m
52130 Other Special Expenditures         0.00 11,576.08 35,650.00 24,073.92 32.50
52146 Entertainment Expenses             0.00 86,547.09 105,000.00 18,452.91 82.40
52147 Open Class Expenses                368.00 44,336.61 30,000.00 (14,336.61) 147.80
52148 4-H Expenses                       0.00 22,819.17 16,000.00 (6,819.17) 142.60
52149 FFA Expenses                       0.00 10,680.45 4,000.00 (6,680.45) 267.00
52150 Truck Pull Expenses                0.00 10,404.94 12,000.00 1,595.06 86.70
52151 Demo Derby Expenses                0.00 18,860.48 22,000.00 3,139.52 85.70
52152 Monster Truck Expenses             0.00 20,750.06 22,000.00 1,249.94 94.30
52153 Rodeo Expenses                     0.00 19,931.61 22,000.00 2,068.39 90.60
55110 Other debt principal               459.10 81,263.49 107,720.00 26,456.51 75.40
56110 Other debt interest payments       44.05 6,453.80 8,341.00 1,887.20 77.40
Total 893.77 338,532.72 388,211.00 49,678.28 87.20
Interdepartmental Charges
53010 Interdpt chg-indirect charges      3,389.42 27,115.36 41,020.00 13,904.64 66.10
53015 Interdpt chg-legal services        0.00 6,971.25 9,000.00 2,028.75 77.50
Total 3,389.42 34,086.61 50,020.00 15,933.39 68.10
Transfers to Other Funds
54195 Transfer to Miscellaneous Debt Se 14,175.00 14,175.00 0.00 (14,175.00) n/m
TOTAL                                    14,175.00 14,175.00 0.00 (14,175.00) n/m

Page 2 Page 13 of 34



Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981000 (Fair Complex) Remaining %
Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
Capital Outlay
57115 Machinery and equipment over $5 0.00 35,908.49 40,000.00 4,091.51 89.80
57135 Other capital outlay               0.00 14,457.86 35,000.00 20,542.14 41.30
TOTAL                                    0.00 50,366.35 75,000.00 24,633.65 67.20
Contingency
59010 Contingency                        0.00 0.00 858,105.00 858,105.00 0.00
TOTAL                                    0.00 0.00 858,105.00 858,105.00 0.00

Total Expenditures 81,473.21 1,363,077.55 2,517,479.00 1,154,401.45 54.10

Beginning Fund Balance (945,162.00) (830,029.00)

Total Revenues (1,305,973.51) (1,687,450.00)

Total Resources (2,251,135.51) (2,517,479.00)

Total Expenditures 1,363,077.55 2,517,479.00

Ending Fund Balance (888,057.96) 0.00

Page 3 Page 14 of 34



Monthly Financial Report
Washington County

  Washington County Period: FEB-09 Currency: USD

Submitted: 18-MAR-09 17:02:39
Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981005 (Fair Complex Operations/Interim Income) Remaining %

Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
Taxes
41025 Transient lodgings tax             (33,241.87) (407,095.92) (680,000.00) (272,904.08) 59.90
TOTAL                                    (33,241.87) (407,095.92) (680,000.00) (272,904.08) 59.90
Charges for sevices
44515 Parking Fees                       (1,980.00) (24,768.35) (31,000.00) (6,231.65) 79.90
TOTAL                                    (1,980.00) (24,768.35) (31,000.00) (6,231.65) 79.90
Miscellaneous revenues
48105 Invest interest income-general     (1,021.43) (12,335.21) (22,500.00) (10,164.79) 54.80
48200 Rental income                      (17,717.73) (74,147.48) (200,000.00) (125,852.52) 37.10
48205 Concessions                        (37.00) (1,661.50) (3,000.00) (1,338.50) 55.40
48225 Other miscellaneous revenue-oper (434.75) (8,522.10) (15,000.00) (6,477.90) 56.80
Total (19,210.91) (96,666.29) (240,500.00) (143,833.71) 40.20

Total Revenues (54,432.78) (528,530.56) (951,500.00) (422,969.44) 55.50

Personal Services
51105 Wages and salaries                 17,479.98 150,213.29 260,927.00 110,713.71 57.60
51110 Temporary salaries                 2,387.20 17,963.75 0.00 (17,963.75) n/m
51115 Overtime and other pay             0.00 5,088.42 0.00 (5,088.42) n/m
51125 FICA                               1,509.46 13,047.37 19,962.00 6,914.63 65.40
51135 Employer paid work day tax         10.66 86.59 140.00 53.41 61.90
51140 Pers contribution                  2,853.25 22,530.80 41,747.00 19,216.20 54.00
51150 Health insurance                   3,368.91 28,467.19 50,937.00 22,469.81 55.90
51155 Life and long term disability insur 44.02 385.48 789.00 403.52 48.90
51160 Unemployment insurance             84.34 698.43 1,050.00 351.57 66.50
51165 Tri-Met tax                        124.58 1,070.71 1,739.00 668.29 61.60
51199 Misc Personal Services             0.00 0.00 10,069.00 10,069.00 0.00
TOTAL                                    27,862.40 239,552.03 387,360.00 147,807.97 61.80
Materials and Supplies
51205 Supplies-office, general           2,227.23 2,972.97 4,000.00 1,027.03 74.30
51210 Supplies- general                  1,073.43 9,006.08 25,000.00 15,993.92 36.00
51270 Postage and freight                0.00 121.62 0.00 (121.62) n/m
51285 Services -professional services    892.30 11,528.78 30,500.00 18,971.22 37.80
51295 Advertising  and  public notice    490.00 3,011.75 1,750.00 (1,261.75) 172.10
51300 Printing and duplicating           0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
51305 Communications-services            434.09 2,395.83 500.00 (1,895.83) 479.20
51310 Utilities                          5,677.76 40,173.18 65,000.00 24,826.82 61.80
51320 Repair & maint services-general   5,584.75 24,259.30 57,000.00 32,740.70 42.60
51340 Lease and rentals - space          3,201.75 28,815.75 0.00 (28,815.75) n/m
51345 Lease and rentals - equipment      188.45 1,610.10 5,000.00 3,389.90 32.20
51350 Dues and membership                95.00 488.75 1,500.00 1,011.25 32.60
51355 Training and education             452.50 768.00 2,000.00 1,232.00 38.40
51360 Travel expense                     948.57 1,493.34 0.00 (1,493.34) n/m

Page 1 Page 15 of 34



Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981005 (Fair Complex Operations/Interim Income) Remaining %
Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
51365 Private mileage                    71.19 374.43 500.00 125.57 74.90
51420 Insurance                          0.00 17,332.43 15,000.00 (2,332.43) 115.50
51465 Postage and freight- Internal      0.00 113.43 500.00 386.57 22.70
51475 Printing- Internal                 0.00 94.66 0.00 (94.66) n/m
51495 Telephone monthly- internal        0.00 3,171.92 6,000.00 2,828.08 52.90
51550 Other materials and services       0.00 1,237.78 4,500.00 3,262.22 27.50
TOTAL                                    21,337.02 148,970.10 219,250.00 70,279.90 67.90
Other Expenditures
52005 Bank Service Charge                22.62 4,104.82 3,500.00 (604.82) 117.30
52045 Taxes, assessments, and  liens     0.00 554.12 0.00 (554.12) n/m
52130 Other Special Expenditures         0.00 376.84 32,000.00 31,623.16 1.20
55110 Other debt principal               459.10 81,263.49 107,720.00 26,456.51 75.40
56110 Other debt interest payments       44.05 6,453.80 8,341.00 1,887.20 77.40
Total 525.77 92,753.07 151,561.00 58,807.93 61.20
Interdepartmental Charges
53010 Interdpt chg-indirect charges      1,694.71 13,557.68 20,510.00 6,952.32 66.10
53015 Interdpt chg-legal services        0.00 6,971.25 8,000.00 1,028.75 87.10
Total 1,694.71 20,528.93 28,510.00 7,981.07 72.00
Transfers to Other Funds
54195 Transfer to Miscellaneous Debt Se 14,175.00 14,175.00 0.00 (14,175.00) n/m
TOTAL                                    14,175.00 14,175.00 0.00 (14,175.00) n/m
Capital Outlay
57115 Machinery and equipment over $5 0.00 35,908.49 40,000.00 4,091.51 89.80
57135 Other capital outlay               0.00 14,457.86 35,000.00 20,542.14 41.30
TOTAL                                    0.00 50,366.35 75,000.00 24,633.65 67.20
Contingency
59010 Contingency                        0.00 0.00 858,105.00 858,105.00 0.00
TOTAL                                    0.00 0.00 858,105.00 858,105.00 0.00

Total Expenditures 65,594.90 566,345.48 1,719,786.00 1,153,440.52 32.90

Total Revenues (528,530.56) (951,500.00)

Total Expenditures 566,345.48 1,719,786.00

Ending Balance 37,814.92 768,286.00

Page 2 Page 16 of 34



Monthly Financial Report

Washington County

  Washington County Period: FEB-09 Currency: USD

Submitted: 18-MAR-09 17:02:39
Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981010 (Annual County Fair) Remaining %

Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
Intergovernmental revenue
43156 Dept Agriculture Lottery Funds   0.00 (49,404.72) (46,000.00) 3,404.72 107.40
TOTAL                                    0.00 (49,404.72) (46,000.00) 3,404.72 107.40
Charges for sevices
44511 Camping Fees                       0.00 (4,050.00) (4,000.00) 50.00 101.30
44512 Truck Pull Revenue                 0.00 (22,005.00) (17,500.00) 4,505.00 125.70
44513 Demo Derby Revenue                 0.00 (26,481.00) (38,700.00) (12,219.00) 68.40
44514 Commercial Booth Rentals           0.00 (94,650.00) (86,500.00) 8,150.00 109.40
44515 Parking Fees                       0.00 (80,911.86) (78,000.00) 2,911.86 103.70
44517 Sponsorship Fees                   0.00 (68,100.00) (72,500.00) (4,400.00) 93.90
44518 Carnival Fees                      0.00 (102,412.27) (90,000.00) 12,412.27 113.80
44522 Entry Fees                         0.00 (3,710.00) (4,000.00) (290.00) 92.80
44526 Monster Truck Revenue              0.00 (22,885.00) (27,000.00) (4,115.00) 84.80
44527 Rodeo Revenue                      0.00 (16,469.00) (27,000.00) (10,531.00) 61.00
TOTAL                                    0.00 (441,674.13) (445,200.00) (3,525.87) 99.20
Miscellaneous revenues
48195 Reimbursement of expenses (oper (77.00) (77.00) 0.00 77.00 n/m
48205 Concessions                        0.00 (105,987.15) (87,500.00) 18,487.15 121.10
48225 Other miscellaneous revenue-oper 0.00 (4,352.55) (10,000.00) (5,647.45) 43.50
Total (77.00) (110,416.70) (97,500.00) 12,916.70 113.20

Total Revenues (77.00) (601,495.55) (588,700.00) 12,795.55 102.20

Personal Services
51105 Wages and salaries                 7,742.42 67,137.21 114,968.00 47,830.79 58.40
51110 Temporary salaries                 356.80 10,446.43 9,776.00 (670.43) 106.90
51115 Overtime and other pay             0.00 3,084.80 0.00 (3,084.80) n/m
51125 FICA                               609.30 5,607.21 9,544.00 3,936.79 58.80
51135 Employer paid work day tax         3.90 37.24 81.00 43.76 46.00
51140 Pers contribution                  1,164.77 10,115.53 18,394.00 8,278.47 55.00
51150 Health insurance                   1,549.29 13,091.60 23,655.00 10,563.40 55.30
51155 Life and long term disability insur 20.34 176.90 378.00 201.10 46.80
51160 Unemployment insurance             34.10 326.92 593.00 266.08 55.10
51165 Tri-Met tax                        50.22 459.12 830.00 370.88 55.30
51199 Misc Personal Services             0.00 0.00 4,814.00 4,814.00 0.00
TOTAL                                    11,531.14 110,482.96 183,033.00 72,550.04 60.40
Materials and Supplies
51205 Supplies-office, general           0.00 385.13 250.00 (135.13) 154.10
51210 Supplies- general                  0.00 17,461.54 15,000.00 (2,461.54) 116.40
51270 Postage and freight                0.00 20.88 0.00 (20.88) n/m
51285 Services -professional services    494.00 78,390.97 62,250.00 (16,140.97) 125.90
51295 Advertising  and  public notice    0.00 97,454.19 107,000.00 9,545.81 91.10
51305 Communications-services            0.00 256.44 300.00 43.56 85.50

Page 1 Page 17 of 34



Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981010 (Annual County Fair) Remaining %
Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use

51310 Utilities                          0.00 13,001.12 12,500.00 (501.12) 104.00
51320 Repair & maint services-general   0.00 2,271.78 2,200.00 (71.78) 103.30
51345 Lease and rentals - equipment      0.00 24,001.71 19,000.00 (5,001.71) 126.30
51350 Dues and membership                95.00 395.00 1,000.00 605.00 39.50
51355 Training and education             452.50 666.00 2,000.00 1,334.00 33.30
51360 Travel expense                     1,135.77 3,254.55 4,000.00 745.45 81.40
51365 Private mileage                    72.20 339.29 200.00 (139.29) 169.60
51420 Insurance                          0.00 17,076.03 15,000.00 (2,076.03) 113.80
51465 Postage and freight- Internal      0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00
51475 Printing- Internal                 0.00 803.88 1,000.00 196.12 80.40
51495 Telephone monthly- internal        0.00 780.51 1,000.00 219.49 78.10
51550 Other materials and services       0.00 194.50 0.00 (194.50) n/m
TOTAL                                    2,249.47 256,753.52 243,000.00 (13,753.52) 105.70
Other Expenditures
52005 Bank Service Charge                0.00 250.00 0.00 (250.00) n/m
52130 Other Special Expenditures         0.00 2,941.70 650.00 (2,291.70) 452.60
52146 Entertainment Expenses             0.00 86,547.09 105,000.00 18,452.91 82.40
52147 Open Class Expenses                368.00 44,336.61 30,000.00 (14,336.61) 147.80
52148 4-H Expenses                       0.00 22,819.17 16,000.00 (6,819.17) 142.60
52149 FFA Expenses                       0.00 10,680.45 4,000.00 (6,680.45) 267.00
52150 Truck Pull Expenses                0.00 10,404.94 12,000.00 1,595.06 86.70
52151 Demo Derby Expenses                0.00 18,860.48 22,000.00 3,139.52 85.70
52152 Monster Truck Expenses             0.00 20,750.06 22,000.00 1,249.94 94.30
52153 Rodeo Expenses                     0.00 19,931.61 22,000.00 2,068.39 90.60
Total 368.00 237,522.11 233,650.00 (3,872.11) 101.70
Interdepartmental Charges
53010 Interdpt chg-indirect charges      1,694.71 13,557.68 20,510.00 6,952.32 66.10
53015 Interdpt chg-legal services        0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Total 1,694.71 13,557.68 21,510.00 7,952.32 63.00

Total Expenditures 15,843.32 618,316.27 681,193.00 62,876.73 90.80

Total Revenues (601,495.55) (588,700.00)

Total Expenditures 618,316.27 681,193.00

Ending Balance 16,820.72 92,493.00

Page 2 Page 18 of 34



Monthly Financial Report
Washington County

  Washington County Period: FEB-09 Currency: USD

Submitted: 18-MAR-09 17:02:39
Fund=200 (Fairplex),  Program=981020 (Fair -Frite Lites) Remaining %

Account FEB-09 YTD-Actual Budget Budget Use
Charges for sevices
44514 Commercial Booth Rentals           0.00 (200.00) 0.00 200.00 n/m
44516 Admission Fees                     0.00 (133,339.47) (130,000.00) 3,339.47 102.60
44517 Sponsorship Fees                   0.00 (2,500.00) (15,000.00) (12,500.00) 16.70
TOTAL                                    0.00 (136,039.47) (145,000.00) (8,960.53) 93.80
Miscellaneous revenues
48195 Reimbursement of expenses (oper 0.00 (36,929.63) 0.00 36,929.63 n/m
48205 Concessions                        0.00 (943.35) (1,500.00) (556.65) 62.90
48225 Other miscellaneous revenue-oper 0.00 (2,034.95) (750.00) 1,284.95 271.30
Total 0.00 (39,907.93) (2,250.00) 37,657.93 1,773.70

Total Revenues 0.00 (175,947.40) (147,250.00) 28,697.40 119.50

Materials and Supplies
51210 Supplies- general                  0.00 14,012.04 6,000.00 (8,012.04) 233.50
51285 Services -professional services    0.00 128,251.34 77,500.00 (50,751.34) 165.50
51295 Advertising  and  public notice    34.99 27,383.19 30,000.00 2,616.81 91.30
51320 Repair & maint services-general   0.00 392.19 0.00 (392.19) n/m
51350 Dues and membership                0.00 119.50 0.00 (119.50) n/m
TOTAL                                    34.99 170,158.26 113,500.00 (56,658.26) 149.90
Other Expenditures
52130 Other Special Expenditures         0.00 8,257.54 3,000.00 (5,257.54) 275.30
Total 0.00 8,257.54 3,000.00 (5,257.54) 275.30

Total Expenditures 34.99 178,415.80 116,500.00 (61,915.80) 153.10

Total Revenues (175,947.40) (147,250.00)

Total Expenditures 178,415.80 116,500.00

Ending Balance 2,468.40 (30,750.00)

Page 1 Page 19 of 34



Balance Sheet
Washington County

Current Period: FEB-09

Date:2009-

  Currency: USD
   Fund=200 (Fairplex) 

FEB-09         
YTD - Actual   

FEB-08         
YTD - Actual   Variance       Variance %  

-------------- -------------- -------------- ------------
Assets:
   Cash and investments                        854,234.40 826,628.33 27,606.07 3.34
   Cash restricted                             0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Property taxes receivable                   0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Assessments receivable                      0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Accounts receivable                         33,123.00 12,267.05 20,855.95 170.02
   Investment interest receivable              0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Contracts receivable                        0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Due from other funds                        (10.00) (10.00) 0.00 0.00
   Other assets                                26,378.12 9,797.12 16,581.00 169.24
   Assets held for resale                      0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m

-------------- -------------- -------------- ------------
               Total Assets                    913,725.52 848,682.50 65,043.02 7.66

============== ============== ============== ============
           Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits
Liabilities:
   Accounts payable                            821.08 (3,680.00) 4,501.08 (122.31)
   Accrued payroll liabilites                  0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Accrued self-insurance                      0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Accrued OHP IBNR Reserve                    0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Amounts held in trust                       801.50 801.50 0.00 0.00
   Due to other funds                          0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m
   Tenants and other deposits                  300.00 0.00 300.00 n/m
   Deferred revenue                            23,744.80 21,864.80 1,880.00 8.60
   Other long-term obligations                 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/m

-------------- -------------- -------------- ------------
               Total Liabilities               25,667.38 18,986.30 6,681.08 35.19

============== ============== ============== ============
Fund equity:
   Fund balances:
      Unserved fund balances:
         Undesignated                          888,058.14 829,696.20 58,361.94 7.03

-------------- -------------- -------------- ------------
               Total fund equity               888,058.14 829,696.20 58,361.94 7.03

-------------- -------------- -------------- ------------

Page



Balance Sheet
Washington County

Current Period: FEB-09

Date:2009-

  Currency: USD
   Fund=200 (Fairplex) 

FEB-09         
YTD - Actual   

FEB-08         
YTD - Actual   Variance       Variance %  

               Total liabilites, fund equity an 913,725.52 848,682.50 65,043.02 7.66
============== ============== ============== ============

Page



County of Washington    Washington County Fair Complex 
       873 NE 34th Avenue 
       Hillsboro, Oregon 97124 
       Phone: (503) 648-1416 
       Fax: (503) 648-7208 
       www.faircomplex.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date: March 24, 2009 
 
To: Washington County Fair Complex Board 
 
From: Leah E. Perkins-Hagele 
  
Re: April 2009 Operations Report 
 
Drainage – Clean Water Services has finished the work on the new storm and sewer 
system. The total cost to the Fair Complex for this project was $4268.00. They will be 
providing an As-Built for future reference.  
 
Maintenance – Last month Maintenance Manager Albert Flanagan Jr., attended 
Maintenance Mania, which is a training event put on by the California Division of Fairs 
along with the Western Fairs Association. This four-day hands-on training event included 
work-shops and seminars on construction, plumbing, new ADA requirements, fire and 
life safety as well as certification and testing. Flanagan received his certificate in 
electrical systems and welding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 34



 

 

FAIR COMPLEX   

 
  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

“The Perfect Place for Everything!”  

Page 23 of 34



WWW.CO.WASHINGTON.OR.US 

THE COMMUNITY 
Washington County and the Portland metropolitan 
area are nationally recognized as being among the 
most livable areas in the country.  Located on the 
western edge of Portland, Washington County is the 
second largest and fastest growing urban county in 
Oregon, with approximately 530,000 citizens.  The 
community is Oregon’s most ethnically diverse.  The 
result of that diversity is that residents and institutions 
alike reflect a global perspective. 
 
Residents enjoy excellent schools, and a unique array 
of cultural and recreational activities.  Washington 
County enjoys the benefits of a healthy urban and 
rural environment and is only an hour’s drive from 
the beach and the mountains and minutes to 
downtown Portland. 
 
THE FAIR COMPLEX 
The 100+ acre complex includes a 24,000 square foot 
Main Exhibit Hall.  The park-like campus includes a 
number of smaller multiple use buildings, a variety of 
specialty areas and all associated infrastructures 
including utilities, maintenance facilities, storage 
areas, road network, and sprinkling system.  The 
facility features an outdoor arena with seating for 
2,155.  A large sports complex, which features tennis 
courts, baseball and soccer fields is leased to the city 
of Hillsboro.  A light rail station stop at the Fair 
Complex links the Portland market directly to the site 
through public transit. 
 
Participants and spectators are attracted to the 
Complex by the year-round programming which 
includes a 4-day traditional county fair and a diversity 
of smaller shows, festivals, community and social 
activities (e.g., banquets, receptions, and parties), etc.  
The Fair Complex is capable of accommodating 
multiple simultaneous events to showcase the 
Complex and Washington County. Expanding the 
existing quality programming with new, creative 
entertainment venues will enhance the economic 

 

 

impact that the Complex generates for the community.  
The Fair Board and other community leaders are 
currently studying the long-term planning for the 
physical facilities.  Possible outcomes may include a 
major renovation on the fair complex property.  The 
current annual budget for providing programming, 
operations and maintenance is $2,000,000.00 
 

THE POSITION 
The Fair Board seeks an 
experienced and innovative 
Executive Director to lead 
the Fair Complex.  The 
Executive Director is 
responsible for the overall 
efficient management of a 

multi-purpose complex that is utilized year-round for a 
variety of shows, festivals, conventions and social 
events.  Reporting to the Fair Board, The Executive 
Director is the Washington County Department Head 
for the Fair Complex. 
 
THE REQUIREMENTS 
Often viewed as an “urban fair” , we are searching for 
an Executive Director who will preserve Washington 
County’s agricultural traditions and enhance 
programming,  which reflects our diverse population.  
The ideal candidate will demonstrate thorough 
knowledge of the principles, practices and procedures 
of: 
  
♦ � The fair, exposition and visitors industries 
♦ � The laws and regulations governing the fair industry 
♦ � Public administration including budgeting and 

financial management procedures and techniques, 
and the principles of supervision 

♦ � Contract negotiation, preparation and administration 
♦ � Private business practice and basic business law 
♦ � Basic facilities construction and maintenance.    
 
The Executive Director of the Fair Complex should 
possess the ability to:   

FAIR ATTENDANCE 
 

2003  39,000 
2004  77,000 
2008   90,000 

 
FREE ADMISSION BEGINS 

 

 

Page 24 of 34



WWW.CO.WASHINGTON.OR.US 

 
TO APPLY 
 
If you are interested in this 
outstanding opportunity, please 
submit a Washington County 
application, cover letter and 
resume to the Human Resources 
Division, Attn:  Denise Doran  
Human Resources Analyst 
155 N First Avenue, Ste 270 
Hillsboro, OR  97124 
 
Or  hr@co.washington.or.us  
 
Your cover letter should reflect your executive level 
experience and knowledge of fair industry standards and 
practices. 
 
Filing Deadline:  (INSERT HERE) 
 
Application packets will be screened according to the 
qualifications outlined.  The most qualified candidates will 
be invited for an interview.   
 
If you have questions, please contact Denise Doran, 
Washington County Human Resources at 503-846-8284. 
 
Washington County is an equal opportunity employer committed to a 

diverse workforce.  Women minorities, veterans, and people with 
disabilities are encouraged to apply. 

F AIR COMPLEX MISSION STATEMENT 
 

♦ � Preserve the annual County Fair & Rodeo and its’  
heritage. 

♦ � Promote the “World Class”  agriculture of the county. 
♦ � Provide a welcoming environment for all volunteers. 
♦ � Commitment to life-long learning with special 

emphasis on youth. 
♦ � Promote year-round facilities for consumer 

tradeshows, public exhibitions & special gatherings. 
♦ � Promote a sense of community among the residents of 

Washington County. 

 
THE BENEFITS 
The salary range for this position is $82,620-$100,440/
annum.  The County offers an attractive benefits package: 
 

Retirement  
Deferred Compensation Plan  
Medical  
Dental   
L ife Insurance  
Long Term Disability  
Vacation  
Administrative Leave  
Holidays  

 
2009 SEARCH SCHEDULE 

(Estimated Dates) 
 

Application Submission  (Insert date here) 
 (3 weeks)  
Preliminary Interviews  (Insert date here) 
(2 weeks) 

Recommendations of Candidates (Insert date here) 
(3 weeks) 

Finalist Interview Process  (Insert date here) 

♦ � Plan, organize and administer the activities of an 
exposition facility 

♦ � Establish program goals and objectives 
♦ � Prepare and administer a budget 
♦ � Supervise, train and evaluate assigned staff 
♦ � Establish and maintain collaborative working 

relationships with individuals, whether members of the 
public, co-workers, advisory board personnel or 
government officials 

♦ � Communicate effectively, orally and in writing, 
including public speaking. 

 
EXPERIENCE &  TRAINING 
This position requires college level training in public or 
business administration, facilities management, event 
management or other related fields; responsible experience 
in fair or event management.   
 
Executive level public sector experience is desirable, along 
with grant writing and sponsorship development skills. 
 
 

 

Page 25 of 34



Calendar of Events 
April 2009-September 2009 

 
Date Event Location 

   
April   
   
1 Board Meeting Cloverleaf Building (4:30 PM) 
1 Booster Meeting Cloverleaf Building (7:00 PM) 
   
   
May   
   
1-3 OFA Spring Managers’ Conference Coos Bay, Oregon 
6 Board Meeting Cloverleaf Building (4:30 PM) 
6 Booster Meeting Cloverleaf Building (7:00 PM) 
25 Memorial Day Office Closed 
   
June   
   
3 Board Meeting Cloverleaf Building (4:30 PM) 
3 Booster Meeting Cloverleaf Building (7:00 PM) 
   
   
July   
   
1 Board Meeting Cloverleaf Building (4:30 PM) 
1 Booster Meeting Cloverleaf Building (7:00 PM) 
3 Fourth of July Holiday Observed Office Closed 
6-12 4-H Horse Fair Barns, Arena, Show Rings 
13 Fair Set-up begins Entire Complex 
30-31 Washington County Fair Entire Complex 
   
August   
   
1-2 Washington County Fair Entire Complex 
28-30 Oregon International Airshow Parking All parking lots 
   
   
September   
   
2 Board Meeting Cloverleaf Building (4:30 PM) 
2 Booster Meeting Cloverleaf Building (7:oo PM) 
   
   
   
   
   
 

Subject to Change Monthly  Page 26 of 34



 WASHINGTON COUNTY FAIR COMPLEX FACILITY SCHEDULE 
April-2009 

(Highlighted events are no-charge) 
 
 Wednesday, April 01, 2009 
**Cloverleaf Bldg. Fair Board Meeting 
**Cloverleaf Bldg.          Booster Meeting 
**Entire Complex           4-H Night 

 
 Friday, April 03, 2009 
Main Exhibit Hall Gem Faire 

 

 Saturday, April 04, 2009 
Main Exhibit Hall Gem Faire 
Quadrant Property      Rally Cross Class 
**Cloverleaf Bldg.          4-H Small Animal Show 
 

 Sunday, April 05, 2009 
Quadrant Property Rally Cross 
Main Exhibit Hall Gem Faire 

**Floral Bldg. 4-H Meeting 

 
 Wednesday, April 08, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Dog Obedience Class 
**Entire Complex           4-H Night 
 

 Thursday, April 09, 2009 
**Entire Complex Search Dog Training 

 
 Friday, April 10, 2009 
Friendship Plaza Smoke School 

 

 Saturday, April 11, 2009 
MEH-Carnival Grounds  Westside Easter Egg Hunt 
**Cloverleaf Bldg. 4-H Small Animal Show 
**Barns                           Swine Weigh-in 

 

 Wednesday, April 15, 2009 
Main Exhibit-SOUTH Dog Obedience Class 
**Entire Complex           4-H Night 

 

 Thursday, April 16, 2009 
Main Exhibit-SOUTH County Volunteer Recognition 

 

 Friday, April 17, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Pass It On Sale 

 

 Saturday, April 18, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Pass It On Sale 
Gravel Lot            E-Tech Recycling Event 
**Show Rings       4-H Cattle Pre-Fair Workshop 

 

  

Sunday, April 19, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Pass It On Sale 
**Floral Bldg. 4-H Meeting 

 

  Tuesday April 21, 2009 
Main Exhibit-South Every Husbands Nightmare Bazaar 

 

  Wednesday, April 22, 2009 
Main Exhibit-South Every Husbands Nightmare Bazaar 
Main Exhibit-North Dog Obedience Class 
**Entire Complex           4-H Night 
 

 Thursday, April 23, 2009 
Main Exhibit-South Every Husbands Nightmare Bazaar 
 

 Friday, April 24, 2009 
Main Exhibit-South Every Husbands Nightmare Bazaar 

 
 Saturday, April 25, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Belly Dance Showcase 
Main Exhibit-South Every Husbands Nightmare Bazaar 
 

 Sunday, April 26, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Belly Dance Showcase 

 

 Wednesday, April 29, 2009 
Main Exhibit-North Dog Obedience Class 
**Entire Complex           4-H Night 

 

Page 27 of 34



WASHINGT EX BOOSTERS ON CO. FAIR COMPL
MEETING MINUTES                                                                          

Mar ch 4, 2009 
 
President Lyle Spiesschaer t  called the meeting to or der .  M������ ���� ��� �������� ������� 
���� ��������� T�������� D��� R����� ��������� ����� �� �� ����� T��� ���� S��������’� �������� 
�������� ��� �������� ������� ���� ���� � � ��� �� ������ ��� ������� ��� D����� ���� �� ��� 

�������  D��� ��������� ��� �������� B����� ��� ���� ����� A�� ������ ���� ���������� A������� 
��� ���� �� �� ��� �

�
�
 

��� �������� 

�� �������� ��� �� ���� ��  Website updates, ������������ � T�� B����  ����������������������
 
L��� ��� S����� D�� �������� ��� Downtown Business Assn �������� ��� ����� ���� ������� ��� 

�������� T������ M������  T�� B������� ���� �� ������� ��� S��������� S�������� �� J��� ������ H
����� ���� ���� ���� ��� D���� W����� 
 
T�� B���� �������� ���� T��� G����� ��� L��� �������� ��� Boy Scout �������� �� ����� Matt 

ahlquist  ���� ��������� ��� E���� S���� A�����  M��� ������ �� ��������� ��� ���������� �� 
�� B������ F��� B���� ���� ����� 

D
�
 
Char lie Vandehey r epor ted on r ecent Booster  Board of Dir ector s meeting.  D�������� ���� 
��������� ����� �� � ‘���’ F��� B���� ���� ����� �� ����� �� ���������  M������ �� ��� ������� 
��������� ��� ���������� ������� �� ������ ���������� �������� ��� ��� F��� H������ ���� ���� ��� 

������� ��� ������� ��� C���� ��� ���� �������� �� ��������� �� ��� F����  E���� �� ��� ����� 
������ ��� ���� ���������� 

B
P
 
Matt Pihl r epor ted on  the Mar ch Fair  Boar d meeting. C���� W���� S������� �� ��������� ��� 

� ���� �� ��� ����������� �� ����������� ����� ���� �� ������� ��� F��� C������� H� ���� ���
CWS ��� ���� ������ ����� ������� ���������� ��� �������� ����������� �� ��� �������� 
S��������� E�������� S���� S���� ���� � ������ �� ��� ��������� �� ��� F��� C������ ����������  
D������� ��� ���� �� ��� F��� B���� ������� �� ������ � ���������� ���� ��� ������������  V��� 

�� �-� ��� �������� S��������� ������� ����� � ���� ������ ����� ‘����� ����’� ����� ����� C���� 
� C�������� M������ R��� ��� ��� 

�
W���� R��������� B������ F��� B����� 
 
L��� ��������� ��� Safety Fence ar ound the Fountain�  T�� ��� ����� ���� ���� �� �� �������� 

� ��� F��� C������� ��� ����� ���� C��� C��� ��� �������� �� ��� C����C����� I�������� R���� �
O������  
 
         SEE  PAGE  � 

Page 28 of 34



P
 
 

AGE �           BOOSTER MEETING MINUTES       ������ 

 
 
Booster  Food Booth: Leah Per kins of the Fair  Staff sent an  agr eement/ contr act to Lyle� 
� �� ����� ���������  S���������� ���� ���� ��� ���� �� ����� �� ����� ��� �� ���� ����������� I

���� ��� ���� ������  P����� ����������� �������� �����-�������� ��������� ��� ��� ��������� 
 
� ��� ������ ������� ��� �������� �� ���� D��� R����� ������ �� F��� B����� � ������� �� ��� 
�� �������� B������ F��� B���� ���� ���� ��

I
� ����� 
 
St. Patr ick’s Day Par ade – Hillsbor o: The ������ �� �� S�������� M���� ���  M��� P��� ������� �� 
��� �� ��� ��� �������� ������� ������  H� ����� ����� ���  A�� ������ ���� ����� �� � ����� ������  

������ ������� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� L��� S� G����� D������ S����� D��� C������ V������� � 
FA �������� T�� B����� E����� M��

B
F ���� ��� A�� � M������� S�������� 
 

ountain  clean�up/ maintenance ���� �� �� M���� ��  T���� ������������ ���� B��� G������ A�� 
�������� T�� B����� G����� D������ L��� S������������ ��� P��� J������� 

F
S
 
 

��� 
 
R����������� �������

����� D��� P��-��� 
 
S
 
 
 

                         NEXT  MEETING  
 
                         Apr il 1, 2009 – 7:00 PM in  Flor al Building     
 

‘We’r e not foolin’ 

Page 29 of 34



WASHINGTON COUNTY FAIR HISTORY 
 

The Washington County Fair Boosters have embarked on compiling and 
printing A history and photo journal of the Fair’s first 150 years.  The 
project is expected to be published by July 1, 2010 and is hoped to 
accurately illustrate the times, places and faces of this county premier 
event as it has evolved though out the county. 
Memorabilia, Stories, photos, etc. are welcomed. 
Please contact Inez Griffels by email at fairhistory@gmail.com or send 
to: 
PO Box 1487, North Plains, OR  97133 

 
 

 
DID YOU KNOW? 

 
The Oregon Pioneers brought the custom of community fairs and town 
festivals with them from the eastern states or from their homeland over 
seas.  As the state organized into counties, it logically followed that the 
counties organized county fairs 
 
Records show that 22 county fairs in the state started as private 
organizations with stockholders.  Ten were the result of the activity of 
booster clubs or local organizations often with the cooperation of the local 
county commissioners.  The State of Oregon set up a method of organizing 
a county fair by elections.  Four fairs in the state were organized in this 
way. 
 
County Fairs were popular.  As they grew, certain problems became 
apparent.  These problems included financing, horseracing at county fairs, 
premiums, judges, and dates.  Interest developed statewide and the 
organization called the Oregon County and District Fairs was formed.  Their 
first meeting was held in 1929 with representation from Clackamas, Coos, 
Curry, Jackson and Klamath.  In 1930 the County Fairs of Linn, Tillamook, 
Washington and Columbia joined the Oregon County Fairs Organization. 
 
Washington County is still a very active part of the Oregon Fairs 
Association.   
 
By: Inez Griffels 
March 24, 2009 
 

Page 30 of 34










